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Date:  September 08, 2025 

 
 
To 
 
The Listing Compliance Department 
M/s. BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai- 400001. 
 
Scrip code: 538919 

 

 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Sub: Notice of 37th Annual General Meeting and the 37th Annual Report for the FY 2024-25 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Regulation 34 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we herewith 
enclose, the Notice of the 37th Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held through Audio-Visual 
Electronic Communication Means (“AVEC”) on Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 5.00 p.m.  
 
The Notice of 37th AGM together with the 37th Annual Report of the Company was dispatched today to 
all the shareholders and stakeholders of the Company to their registered email ids and also made 
available on the Company’s website www.slvdigital.in at the Investors Info with the following URL: 
https://www.slvdigital.in/Annual%20Reports.html  
 
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Thursday, 
September 25, 2025 to Tuesday, September 30, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the 37th 
Annual General Meeting and further inform that the e-voting period will commence from Saturday, 
September 27, 2025,at 9.00 a.m and ends on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 5.00 p.m and for the same 
the cut-off date is Wednesday, September 24, 2025. The Company is providing its Shareholders, the 
facility to cast their vote by electronic means on all the resolutions set forth in the Notice through M/s. 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) e-voting platform at www.evotingindia.com 

(EVSN: 250901022) and also availed the e-AGM facility of CDSL. 

 
We enclose the Notice of 37th AGM together with the 37th Annual Report of the Company for the FY 
2024-25. 
 
This is for the information of all the stakeholders of the Company and for the record of the Exchange, 
please.   
 
 
Yours truly 
For Skyline Ventures India Limited 
 
 
 
Srilekha Donthineni 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Encl: A/a. 

Donthineni 
Srilekha

Digitally signed by Donthineni 
Srilekha 
Date: 2025.09.08 11:49:51 
+05'30'

http://www.slvdigital.in/
https://www.slvdigital.in/Annual%20Reports.html
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N O T I C E
Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Seventh (37th) Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/s. Skyline Ventures India 
Limited will be held at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Workafella, Cyber Crown- 424, Sec-II, HUDA Techno 
Enclave, Madhapur, Hyderabad, Telangana – 500081 through Audio-Visual Electronic Communication Means (“AVEC”) on 
Tuesday, the 30th day of September 2025 at 05.00 p.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 

31, 2025, including Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended on that date together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a director in place of Mr. Prashanth Mitta (DIN: 02459109), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers 
himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3.	 To Consider the Appointment of Ms. Sarada Putcha, Practicing Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditor of the 

Company for the period of 5 consecutive years for conducting audit from the financial year 2025-26 to FY 2029–30.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 179 and 204 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules made thereunder, and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time and based on the recommendations of 
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, the approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for the 
appointment of Ms. Sarada Putcha, Practicing Company Secretary, Hyderabad (a peer reviewed holding CP. No. 8735) 
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive years, commencing from Financial Year 2025-
26 till Financial Year 2029-30 at such remuneration and on such terms and conditions as may be determined by the 
Board of Directors (including its committees thereof), and to avail any other services, certificates, or reports as may be 
permissible under applicable laws. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, (including its committees thereof), be and is 
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, 
including filing the requisite forms or submission of documents with any authority or accepting any modifications to 
the clauses as required by such authorities, for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected 
therewith, or incidental thereto.”

	 By Order of the Board
	 For Skyline Ventures India Limited

	 Sd/-
	 Asha Mitta
Date: 01/09/2025	 Managing Director
Place: Hyderabad	 DIN: 09195662

NOTES:
1.	 In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder and General 

Circular nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 02/2021 dated 
January 13, 2021, 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022, 10/22 dated December 28, 2022, 9/2023 
dated September 25, 2023 and 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024  issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) 
read with Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-POD-2/P/CIR/ 2023/167 dated 07.10.2023 and other relevant circulars issued 
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), from time to time (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the 
Circulars”), companies are allowed to hold Annual General Meetings (AGMs) through Video Conference (“VC”) or 
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) up to September 30, 2025, without physical presence of members at a common 
venue. The SEBI vide the above mentioned Circular No. has extended the relaxations from printing and dispatching of 
Physical Copies of Annual Reports and to conduct the AGMs through VC/ OAVM till September 30, 2025. However, 
in terms of Regulation 36(1)(c) of LODR Regulations, Company is required to send hard copy of full Annual Repot 
to those shareholders who request for the same. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the AGM of the Company 
is being convened through VC/OAVM and the venue of the AGM shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the 
Company. 
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2.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy 
to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being 
proposed to be held pursuant to the said MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of members has 
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the 
AGM and hence the Proxy Form and the Attendance Slip are not attached to this Notice. 

3.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), in respect of items of special 
business is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

4.	 In case you are holding the Company’s shares in dematerialized form, please contact your depository participant and 
kindly give suitable instructions to update your bank details in your demat account and to notify any changes with 
respect to their addresses, email id, ECS mandate etc. In case you are holding Company’s shares in physical form, 
please inform Company’s RTA viz. M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Pvt. Ltd., AURUM, Door No.4-
50/P-II/57/4F & 5F, Plot No.57, 4th & 5th Floors, Jayabheri Enclave Phase -II, Gachibowli, Hyderabad – 500032, by 
enclosing a photocopy of blank cancelled cheque of your bank account.

5.	 As per Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, securities of listed companies can 
be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 01, 2019. Even the transmission or transposition 
of securities held in physical or dematerialised form shall be affected only in dematerialised form with effect from 
January, 24, 2022. In view of this and to eliminate all the risks associated with physical shares and for the ease of 
portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to 
dematerialized form. M/s. Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Pvt. Ltd., AURUM, Door No.4-50/P-II/57/4F & 
5F, Plot No.57, 4th & 5th Floors, Jayabheri Enclave Phase -II, Gachibowli, Hyderabad – 500032, is the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. All communications in respect of share transfers, dematerialization and change 
in the address of the members may be communicated to the RTA. 

6.	 Members holding shares in the same name under different Ledger Folios are requested to apply for consolidation of 
such Folios and are requested to send the relevant share certificates to the RTA/Company.

7.	 Corporate members intending to allow their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send to 
the Company a certified copy of the Board resolution authorising their representative to attend and vote on their behalf 
at the meeting.

8.	 Members holding shares in physical form are informed to furnish their bank account details to the RTA to have the same 
printed on the dividend warrants so as to avoid any possible fraudulent encashment / misuse of dividend warrants by 
others.

9.	 Members who hold shares in physical form can nominate a person in respect of all the shares held by them singly or 
jointly. Members who hold shares in a single name are advised, in their own interest to avail the nomination facility. 
Members holding shares in dematerialized form may contact their respective depository participant(s) for recording 
nomination in respect of their shares.

10.	 Members seeking any information or clarification on the accounts are requested to send their queries to the Company, 
in writing, at least one week before the date of the meeting. Replies will be provided in respect of such written queries 
at the meeting. 

11.	 Pursuant to the directions/notifications of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and Depositories, the demat 
account holders can operate their accounts if they had already provided Income Tax Permanent Account Number 
either at the time of opening of the account or at any time subsequently. In case they have not furnished the Income Tax 
Permanent Account Number to the Depository Participants, such demat account holders are requested to contact their 
DPs with a photocopy of the PAN Card (with original PAN Card for verification), so that the frozen demat accounts 
would be available for operation and further consequences of non-compliance with the aforesaid directives would 
be obviated. SEBI, vide Circular ref.no. MRD/DOP/CIR-05/2009 dated May 20, 2009 made it mandatory to have PAN 
particulars for registration of physical share transfer requests. Based on the directive contained in the said circular, all 
share transfer requests are therefore to be accompanied with PAN details. Members holding shares in physical form 
can submit their PAN details to the Company / RTA. Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its Circular 
dated November 3, 2021, December 15, 2021 and March 16, 2023, has mandated the submission of PAN, KYC details 
and nomination by holders of physical securities by September 30, 2023. Members are requested to submit their PAN, 
KYC and nomination details to the RTA of the Company Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Pvt. Ltd. The 
format of mandatory KYC documents is available on the Company’s Website www.slvdigital.in. Members holding 
shares in electronic form are, requested to submit their PAN to their depository participant(s). In case a holder of 
physical securities fails to furnish these details or link their PAN with Aadhaar before the due date, our registrars 
are obligated to freeze such folios. The securities in the frozen folios shall be eligible to receive payments (including 
dividend) and lodge grievances only after furnishing the complete documents. If the securities continue to remain 
frozen as on December 31, 2025, the registrar/the Company shall refer such securities to the administering authority 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988, and/ or the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. 

12.	 Members may also note that the Notice of the 37th Annual General Meeting is available on the Company’s website: 
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www.slvdigital.in. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be open for inspection by the Members by writing an e-mail to the Company at 
cs@slvdigital.in.

	 In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with Annual Report 
2024-25 is being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company / Depository Participants. Members may note that the Notice and the Annual Report 2024-25 will also be 
available on the Company’s website at www.slvdigital.in, on the website of the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.co, and on the website of CDSL www.evotingindia.com.

	 To support ‘Green Initiative’, members who have not registered their email addresses are requested to register the 
same with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/ their Depository Participants in respect of shares held 
in physical/electronic mode, respectively.

13.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to the Notice.

14.	 Additional information pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and pursuant to Secretarial Standards on general meetings, information in respect of the Directors 
seeking appointment/reappointment at the Annual General Meeting is furnished in the annexure and forms part of the 
notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite consent / declaration for their appointment / re-appointment. 

15.	 Retirement of Directors by rotation: Mr. Prashanth Mitta (DIN: 02459109), Non-Executive Director of the Company, 
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for reappointment. The 
Board of directors recommend his reappointment.

Instructions for E-VOTING
CDSL e-Voting System –For e-voting during AGM
1.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote 
e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has 
entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting 
as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 

2.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at 
the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will 
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

3.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4.	 Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the 
members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 
2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can 
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

5.	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 
AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.slvdigital.in. The Notice can also be accessed from 
the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on 
the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e., 
www.evotingindia.com.

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:
i.	 The remote e-voting period begins on Saturday, September 27, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Monday, September 

29, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, September 24, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The 
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

ii.	 Board of Directors have appointed Scrutinizer Ms. Sarada Putcha (CP No. 8735), Practising Company Secretary, 
Hyderabad, to act as Scrutinizer to conduct and scrutinize the electronic voting process in connection with the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting in a fair and transparent manner. The members desiring to vote through electronic mode may 
refer to the detailed procedure on e-voting given hereunder.
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iii.	 Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

iv.	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are 
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, 
it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a 
negligible level.

	 Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This 
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

	 In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to 
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ 
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without 
having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease 
and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

	 Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 
demat mode.

v.	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided 
by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their 
mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

	 Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of Shareholder Login Method
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL 
Depository

1)	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 
existing user id and password.

	 Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/ home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and 
select New System Myeasi.

2)	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
for eligible Companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information 
provided by Company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see 
e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting and voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3)	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/ Registration/EasiRegistration

4)	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.
com home page or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/ Evoting Login. 
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and 
Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 
be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to 
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 
Depository

1)	 If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https:// 
eservices. nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

	 Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 
you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under 
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on Company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting and voting during the meeting.
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2)	 If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at 
https:// eservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3)	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting and 
voting during the meeting.

4)	 For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, 
PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered 
email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you will 
be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their Depository 
Participants (DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful 
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option.

Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL depository 
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on the 
Company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting and voting during the meeting.

	 Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website.

	 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll 
free no.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

	 Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non- 
individual shareholders in demat mode.

vi.	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for physical shareholders and shareholders other than 
individual holding in Demat form:

1)	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2)	 Click on “Shareholders” module.

3)	 Now enter your User ID

a.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
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b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c.	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4)	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5)	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
e-voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.

6)	 If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.
PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
•	 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant 

are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/ 
RTA.

Dividend Bank 
Details or Date 
of Birth (DOB

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the Company records in order to login.
•	 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company, please enter the 

member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

vii.	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

viii.	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by 
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 
Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

ix.	 For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained 
in this Notice.

x.	 Click on the EVSN: 250901022 for the relevant Company, i.e., Skyline Ventures India Limited, on which you choose to 
vote.

xi.	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option 
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

xii.	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

xiii.	 After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. 
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify 
your vote.

xiv.	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

xv.	 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

xvi.	 If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and 
click on Forgot Password and enter the details as prompted by the system.

xvii.	 There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for 
verification.

xviii.	 Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only.

•	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on 
to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

•	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk. 
evoting@cdslindia.com.

•	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

•	 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically and can be delink in case of any wrong 
mapping.

•	 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same.
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•	 Alternatively, non-individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; cs@slvdigital.in, if they have voted from individual tab and 
not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:
1.	 The procedure for attending meeting and e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above 

for e-voting.

2.	 The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3.	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not 
be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / iPads for better experience.

5.	 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

6.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at csskylineventures@gmail.com. The shareholders who do not wish to 
speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their 
name, demat account number/ folio number, email id, mobile number at csskylineventures@gmail.com. These queries 
will be replied to by the Company suitably by email.

8	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting.

9.	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on 
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10.	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders 
have not participated in the meeting through AVC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be 
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the 
meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.
1.	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 

share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy 
of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2.	 For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id and mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP)

3.	 For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id and mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting and joining virtual meetings through Depository.

	 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM and e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911

	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. 
Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia. 
com or call toll free no. 1800 21 09911.

General Instructions
i.	 The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to the shares held by them in the paid-up equity share capital of 

the Company as on cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, September 24, 2025.

ii.	 The scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unlock the votes through e-voting and 
remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses, not in the employment of the Company and make, not later 
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than 48 hours from the conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the same to the 
Chairman. The results declared along with the consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the 
Company www.slvdigital.in and on the website of CDSL www.cdslindia.com. The results shall simultaneously be 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed 
to be passed on the date of the Meeting, i.e., September 30, 2025.

iii.	 The voting result will be announced by the Chairman or any other person authorized by him within two days of the 
AGM.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 AND PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015 TO THE 
ACCOMPANYING NOTICE DATED SEPTEMBER 01, 2025.

Item No. 3

Ms. Sarada Putcha, Practicing Company Secretary with over 15 years of experience in delivering comprehensive professional 
services across Corporate Laws, SEBI Regulations and FEMA Regulations. Her expertise includes conducting Secretarial 
Audits, Due Diligence Audits, Compliance Audits etc. In terms of Regulation 24A of LODR Regulations read with SEBI 
notification dated December 12, 2024, and other applicable provisions, the Company can appoint a peer reviewed company 
secretary as secretarial auditor for not more than one (1) term of five (5) consecutive years. Ms. Sarada Putcha, Practicing 
Company Secretary is eligible for appointment for a period of five years and on the basis of recommendations of the Audit 
Committee, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on May 26, 2025, approved the appointment of Ms. Sarada Putcha as 
secretarial auditor of the Company to hold office for a term of five consecutive years commencing from Financial Year 2025-26 
till Financial Year 2029-30. The appointment is subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Sarada Putcha has given her consent to act as secretarial auditor of the Company and confirmed that her aforesaid 
appointment (if approved) would be within the limits specified by Institute of Company Secretaries of India. Furthermore, 
in terms of the amended regulations, Ms. Sarada Putcha has provided a confirmation that she has subjected herself to the 
peer review process of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and hold a valid peer review certificate. The proposed 
remuneration to be paid to Ms. Sarada Putcha for secretarial audit services for the financial year ending March 31, 2026, is 
Rs.0.5 lakh (Rupees fifty thousand only) plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses and for the remaining four years the 
fee shall be increased by 10% on yearly basis. Besides the secretarial audit services, the Company may also obtain certifications 
from Ms. Sarada Putcha under various statutory regulations and certifications required by banks, statutory authorities, audit 
related services and other permissible non-secretarial audit services as required from time to time, for which she will be 
remunerated separately on mutually agreed terms, as approved by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit 
Committee. The above fee excludes the proposed remuneration to be paid for the purpose of secretarial audit of subsidiaries, 
if any.

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee shall approve revisions to the remuneration of Ms. Sarada Putcha for the 
remaining part of the tenure.

The Board of Directors, in consultation with the Audit Committee, may alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment, 
including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with Ms. Sarada Putcha. Based on the 
recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors have approved and recommended the aforesaid proposal 
for approval of members taking into account the eligibility of the firm’s qualification, experience, independent assessment 
& expertise of the partners in providing secretarial audit related services, competency of the staff and Company’s previous 
experience based on the evaluation of the quality of audit work done by them in the past.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in passing the proposed Resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolution No. 3 of the Notice for approval of the members by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

	 By Order of the Board
	 For Skyline Ventures India Limited

	 Sd/-
	 Asha Mitta
Date: 01/09/2025	 Managing Director
Place: Hyderabad	 DIN: 09195662
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Annexure 
Details of Director(s) seeking appointment/ re-appointment/ regularization/retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting 
(Pursuant to Reg.36 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is given below:

A Name Mr Prashanth Mitta

B Brief Profile

i)	 Age 15/02/1976

ii)	 Educational Qualification Prashanth holds the master’s degree in business administration (MBA) 
from MIM New Delhi.

iii)	 Experience in specific functional 
area

Mr. Prashanth Mitta (DIN: 02459109) has overall 23 years of experience 
in operational activities setting strategic goals, reflecting the steady 
growth of the organization’s strong offshore facility, enhancing customer 
satisfaction. Prashanth is also responsible for building the efficiency of 
business procedures aligning the same with organizational objectives 
and managing the procurement process, resource allocation, budgets to 
promote profitability and customer support processes. Prashanth holds the 
master’s degree in business administration (MBA) from MIM New Delhi, 
spent over a decade advancing through a series of Leadership positions. 
Gained significant global experience by heading operations and Business 
Development for Two Firms and has led multiple outsourcing Programs 
and running P & L accounts. Prashanth is an excellent organizational leader 
with outstanding people skills, in depth knowledge of diverse business 
functions and principles processes and customer service sectors. Specialties: 
Operations, Human Resource Management and Business Development.

iv)	 Date of appointment on the board 
of the Company 

May 29, 2023 and re-designated on July 17, 2024

C Nature of expertise in functional area Mentioned in clause B (iii) above.

D Directorship held in other Companies 
(excluding foreign and Section 8 
Companies)

1.	 M/s. Bodhtree Consulting Limited

E Chairmanship/ Membership of 
committees of other Companies (includes 
only Audit, Stakeholders Relationship and 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee)

Member of Audit Committee of Bodhtree Consulting Limited
Chairman of Rights Issue Committee of Bodhtree Consulting Limited
Member of Management Committee of Bodhtree Consulting Limited

F No. of shares of ` 10/- each held by the 
Director

Nil

G Relationship between Directors inter se 
(As per section 2(77) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Companies (Specification of 
definitions details) Rules, 2014)

Mrs Asha Mitta is a spouse

H Terms and Condition of appointment Being appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company by way of 
retire by rotation

I Number of meetings of the Board attended 
during the financial year 2024-25

Five out of Five

J Remuneration last drawn Nil

K Remuneration proposed to be drawn NA



37th Annual Report 2024 - 2025

SKYLINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED 

12

BOARD’S REPORT
To, 
The Members,
Skyline Ventures India Limited

Your Director’s have pleasure in presenting before you the 37th (Thirty Seventh) Board’s Report on the business and operations 
of Skyline Ventures India Limited, along with the Audited Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year (“FY”) ended 
31st March, 2025.

Financial performance
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) the Company has prepared its financial statements as per Indian 
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) for the FY 2024-25. The financial highlights of the Company’s standalone operations are as 
follows:
	 (Amount in ` Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Total Income Nil Nil

Total Expenditure 37.91 61.97

Profit before Tax (37.91) (61.97)

Provision for Tax 0.16 (0.04)

Profit after Tax (38.07) (61.93)

Transfer to General Reserve -- --

Profit available for appropriation -- --

Provision for Proposed Dividend -- --

Provision for Corporate Tax -- --

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
The highlights of the Company’s performance on Standalone basis are as under: 

The total revenue of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ` Nil Lakhs as compared to the previous 
year’s total revenue of ` Nil Lakhs. During this financial year the Company has incurred a net loss of ` 38.07 Lakhs as against 
the previous year’s net loss of ` 61.93 Lakhs.

The operational performance highlights have been comprehensively discussed in Management Discussion and Analysis 
Report forming an integral part of this Integrated Annual Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There was no change in nature of the business of the Company during the financial year ended on March 31, 2025.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the F.Y. 2024-25, the authorised share capital of the Company is ` 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores Only) divided into 
1,00,00,000 (One Crore) equity shares of ` 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

The paid-up share capital of the Company is ` 3,96,66,680/- (Rupees Three Crores Ninety-Six Lakhs Sixty-Six Thousand Six 
Hundred and Eighty only) divided into 39,66,668 (Thirty-Nine Lakhs Sixty-Six Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-Eight) equity 
shares of ` 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

There were no changes in the authorized and paid-up share capital of the Company during the year under review.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
For the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves and Surplus 
Account.

DIVIDEND
The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

BUY BACK OF SHARES AND DISINVESTMENT
The Company has not bought back any of its securities and there was no disinvestment during the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2025.
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INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) with effect from April 1, 2017 pursuant to Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs’ notification of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The standalone financial 
statements of the Company, forming part of the Annual Report, have been prepared and presented in accordance with all 
the material aspects of the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’)) and relevant 
amendment rules issued thereafter and guidelines issued by the Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”).

AUDIT TRAIL APPLICABILITY (AUDIT AND AUDITORS) RULES 2014 - RULE 11 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013.
As required under Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Company has used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND(S)/ SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
During the FY 2024-25, there was no unpaid/ unclaimed dividend pertaining to FY 2017-18 to be transferred to the Investors 
Education and Protection Fund (‘IEPF’) Account established by the Central Government.

Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016, as amended, the shares on which dividend remains unpaid / unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more shall 
be transferred to the Investor’s Education and Protection Fund (‘IEPF’) after giving due notices to the concerned shareholders, 
which is not applicable to the Company during the year.

UNCLAIMED SECURITIES DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
There were no unclaimed securities to be kept in the demat suspense account.

DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as such, no 
amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet for the FY 
2024-25.

DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL
No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have impact on the 
going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the 
financial year March 31, 2025 to which the financial statements relates and the date of signing of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As on March 31, 2025, the following are the Directors on the Board of the Company

Sl.No. Name of the Director DIN Designation

1 Mrs Asha Mitta 09195662 Managing Director

2 Mr Prashanth Mitta 02459109 Non-executive Director

3 Mr Nikshit Hemendra Shah 07910462 Independent Director

4 Mr Ajay Kumar Giri 10254489 Independent Director

During the year under review, the following are the changes in the composition of Directors.
1.	 Mrs. Asha Mitta (DIN: 09195662) has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company by the Board in its meeting 

held on July 17, 2024 and subsequently approved by the members in their 36th Annual General Meeting held on 
September 30, 2024.

2.	 Mr. Prashanth Mitta (DIN: 02459109) designation has been changed from Whole-time Director to Non-executive 
Director by the Board in its meeting held on July 17, 2024 and subsequently approved by the members in their 36th 
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2024.

3.	 Mrs. Srivenkata Laxmi Padmaja Lakkimsetti (DIN: 07751864) resigned from the position of Director of the Company 
w.e.f., July 17, 2024.

4.	 Mr. Naga Visweswara Rao Lakkimsetti (DIN: 03623325) resigned from the position of Whole-time Director and Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f., July 17, 2024.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the FY 2024-25, the Company is having the following KMPs
1.	 Mrs. Asha Mitta, Managing Director was appointed w.e.f. July 17, 2024
2.	 Mr. Krishna Mohan Reddy Gorantampalli, Company Secretary who has resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2025.
3.	 Mr. Naga Visweswara Rao Lakkimsetti, Chief Financial Officer who has resigned w.e.f., July 17, 2024.

DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the Independent Directors of the Company have given their declarations 
to the Company that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act read along with Rules 
framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1) (b) & 25(8) of the Listing Regulations and are not disqualified from continuing as an 
Independent Director of the Company.

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists or may 
be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent 
judgement and without any external influence. Further, in compliance with Rule 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA). The Policy on Terms of Engagement of Independent Directors is applicable for 
the period under review.

Based on the disclosures received, the Board is of the opinion that, all the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified 
in the Act and Listing Regulations and are independent of the management.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and 
appointment of Directors and Senior Management personnel and fix their remuneration. The detailed policy is available on 
the Company’s website at www.slvdigital.in.

ANNUAL BOARD EVALUATION
The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual directors 
pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of the criteria 
such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis 
of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

The board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis 
of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the 
issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the chairman was 
also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, performance of the board as a 
whole and performance of the chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive 
directors. The same was discussed in the board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent directors, at which the 
performance of the board, its committees and individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of independent 
directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being evaluated.

Criteria for Performance Evaluation:
a.	 Ability of the candidates to devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations as Independent Director 

for informed and balanced decision making.

b.	 Adherence to the Code of Conduct in letter and in spirit by the Independent Directors.

c.	 Bringing objectivity and independence of view to the Board’s discussions in relation to the Company’s strategy, 
performance, and risk management

d.	 Statutory Compliance and ensuring high standards of financial probity and Corporate Governance

e.	 Responsibility towards requirements under the Companies Act, 2013, Responsibilities of the Board and accountability 
under the Director’s Responsibility Statement.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME
A handbook covering the role, functions, duties and responsibilities and the details of the compliance requirements expected 
from the Directors under the Act, and relevant Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
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Regulations, 2015 were given and explained to the new Directors.

The newly appointed Directors are given induction and orientation with respect to Company’s Vision, Core purpose, Core 
Values and Business operations. In addition, detailed presentations are made by Senior Management Personnel on business 
environment, performance of the Company at every Board Meeting.

The above initiatives help the Directors to understand the Company, its business and the regulatory framework in which the 
Company operates and enables the Directors to fulfil their role/responsibility.

Details of Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors are uploaded on the website of the Company at www. 
slvdigital.in.

PARTICULARS IN RESPECT OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo required to be 
disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are 
provided in the Annexure-I forming part of this Report.

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES
During the Financial Year under review, the Company does not have any Subsidiaries/ Associate /Joint Venture Companies.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT 
VENTURES
As per Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a Report on the performance and financial position of each of the 
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture Companies of the Company is not applicable.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
As per Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the consolidated financial statement of the Company and all its Subsidiaries 
prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards shall form part of the Annual Report. However, the Company 
is not having any subsidiary, associate Company and hence this provision is not applicable for the Company as on date.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All transactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course 
of business. There were no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large. All Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee and also the Board for approval, where ever 
required. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee was obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseeable and 
repetitive nature. A statement giving details of all related party transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so 
granted were placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The Company has developed 
a Policy on Related Party Transactions for the purpose of identification and monitoring of such transactions. The policy on 
Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website www.slvdigital.in.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 is prepared in 
Form AOC-2 pursuant to clause (h) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the same is annexed herewith as ‘Annexure-
II’ to this Report.

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL/ 
EMPLOYEES:
Information required pursuant to Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided along with a statement containing, inter alia, names of 
employees employed throughout the financial year and in receipt of remuneration of ̀  102 lakhs or more, employees employed 
for part of the year and in receipt of ` 80.50 lakhs or more per annum, pursuant to Rule 5(2) the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided as ‘Annexure-III’ to this report.

AUDITORS

a)	 Statutory Auditors
	 M/s. K S Rao & Associates., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 012055S) were appointed as Statutory 

Auditors of the Company at the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September 2024, for a 
term of 5 (five) consecutive years, i.e., to hold office from the conclusion of the 36th Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company.

	 The Auditors’ Report read together with Annexures referred to in the Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025 does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.
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b)	 Internal Auditors
	 The Board appointed M/s. SR & Associates, Cost Accountants, Hyderabad, as an Internal Auditors of the Company 

for FY 2024-2025, who have conducted the internal audits periodically and shared their reports and findings with the 
Audit Committee including significant observations, if any, and follow-up actions thereon from time to time. The Audit 
Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control environment and monitors the 
implementation of audit recommendations including those relating to strengthening the Company’s risk management 
policies and systems. 

c)	 Cost Auditors
	 Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, the maintenance 

of cost records is not applicable to the Company for the year under review

d)	 Secretarial Auditors and Report
	 The Board appointed Ms. Sarada Putcha, Practicing Company Secretary to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company 

for FY 2024-2025, pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made thereunder. The Secretarial Audit 
Report for FY 2024-2025 received from Secretarial Auditor is annexed herewith as ‘Annexure – IV’ to this Report. The 
report of Secretarial Auditor is self-explanatory and has noted the qualifications/ observations/ deviations together 
with the management replies:

Secretarial Auditors Qualifications in the
Secretarial Audit Report Management Replies

Chief Financial Officer of the Company was not 
appointed from July 18, 2024 to till date.

The Company is in the process of identifying a suitable 
candidate and necessary steps are being taken to fill the 
vacancy at the earliest.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 204 of the Act and Regulation 24A of Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors, on the 
recommendations of the Audit Committee, in its meeting held on May 26, 2025 has recommended to the shareholders of the 
Company, the appointment of Ms. Sarada Putcha, Practising Company Secretary (a peer reviewed holding CP. No. 8735) for 
a first term of 5 (five) consecutive years of 2025-26 to 2029-2030, i.e., to hold the office from conclusion of 37th Annual General 
Meeting till the conclusion of 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Company has received the consent & eligibility certificate from Ms. Sarada Putcha, Practising Company Secretary and 
that the appointment, if made, shall be in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder 
and Listing Regulations. 

As per Reg. 15(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015, the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report under Regulation 24A of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended on March 31, 2025 is not applicable to the Company.   

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 Company has obtained a certificate on non-disqualification of directors from Ms. Sarada Putcha, Practising 
Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditor which is annexed as ‘Annexure-V’ and forms integral of this Report.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016
During the year under review, no application was made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and there were no 
one time settlement with any of the Banks or Financial Institutions.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company complied with all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY
The web link of the Dividend Distribution Policy is placed on the Company’s Website www.slvdigital.in for the perusal of the 
shareholders.

STATEMENT OF DEVIATION(S) OR VARIATION(S) IN THE USE OF PROCEEDS
Pursuant to Regulation 32(1)(b) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, this is to state that this Regulation is not applicable to the 
Company since the Company has not made public issue, rights issue or preferential issue during the year under review 
and accordingly there are no deviations or variations in the use of proceeds from the objects stated in the offer document or 
explanatory statement to the notice for the general meeting, as applicable.

POLICIES
The Board of Directors of your Company, from time to time have framed and revised various Policies as per the applicable 
Acts, Rules, Regulations and Standards for better governance and administration of the Company. The Policies are made 
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available on the website of the Company at www.slvdigital.in. The policies are reviewed periodically by the Board and 
updated based on need and requirements.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
Since the Company did not have profits (average net profits for the last three financial years), it was not obligated to contribute 
towards CSR activities during FY 2024-25. However, the Company is committed to build its CSR capabilities on a sustainable 
basis and undertake CSR activities as and when the opportunity arises.

The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required to be given as the 
Company was not required to contribute towards CSR activities during FY 2024-25.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
In terms of the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time 
to time, the Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year ended march 31, 2025 is annexed hereto as ‘Annexure-VI’ and 
forms integral of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Corporate governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values aimed at enhancing an organization’s 
brand and reputation. This is ensured by taking ethical business decisions and conducting business with a firm commitment 
to values, while meeting stakeholders’ expectations. It is imperative that your Company’s affairs are managed in a fair and 
transparent manner. This is vital to gain and retain the trust of the stakeholders.

Company is having paid up equity share capital of ` 3,96,66,680 which is not exceeding ` 10 crore and Net worth is ` 361.21 
Lakhs which is not exceeding Rs.25 crore, as on the last day of the financial year 2024-25. Hence the provisions of Regulations 
17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 2 of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E of Schedule 
V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are not 
applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT
During the year, the risk assessment parameters were reviewed. The audit committee reviewed the element of risks and the 
steps taken to mitigate the risks. In the opinion of the Board, there are no major elements of risk which have the potential of 
threatening the existence of the Company.

The audit committee provides the framework of Risk Management by describing mechanisms for the proactive identification 
and prioritization of risks based on the scanning of the external environment and continuous monitoring of internal risk 
factors.

Analysis of the risks identified is carried out by way of focused discussion at the meetings of the Board. The robust governance 
structure has also helped in the integration of the Enterprise Risk Management process with the Company’s strategy and 
planning processes where emerging risks are used as inputs in the strategy and planning process. Identified risks are used as 
one of the key inputs in the strategy and business plan.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations.

Various Audit Systems in the Company monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the 
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the Company. Based on the audit 
reports, Company undertakes corrective actions in respective areas and strengthens the control. Significant audit observations 
and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board periodically.

The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted various policies like Related Party Transactions policy, Whistle Blower 
Policy and such other procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business for safeguarding its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information. The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included 
in the management discussion & analysis, which forms part of this report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Financial Statements of the Company for FY 2024-25, are prepared in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Act and as stipulated under Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations as well as in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The Audited Financial Statements 
together with the Auditors Report thereon forms part of this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the Financial Statements of the Company, along with relevant documents 
are available on the website of the Company. The detailed information will be made available to investors seeking such 
information till the date of the ensuing 37th AGM of the Company.
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LISTING OF COMPANY’S EQUITY SHARES
The Company’s Equity shares were listed with M/s. BSE Limited (Stock Exchange). Due to non-compliance with SEBI 
LODR regulations, the trading in shares of the Company was suspended by the BSE from February 18, 2022 with six months 
permitting one day trading in a week and permanently suspended from September 06, 2022. After ensuring all the necessary 
compliances, the Company had applied for revocation of suspension in trading and the BSE has granted the approval for 
revocation of suspension in trading in the shares of the Company w.e.f. June 11, 2024.

The Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to the said Stock Exchange for the F.Y. 2024-25.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has adopted a Whistle-blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors, Employees and its 
Stakeholders to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code 
of Conduct. Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle-blower through several channels.

The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides 
for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. No personnel of the Company have been denied access to the 
Audit Committee.

The Whistle-blower Policy also facilitates all employees of the Company to report any instance of leak of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information. The Policy is also posted on the website of the Company at www.slvdigital.in.

REPORTING OF FRAUD
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not reported any 
instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees, to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of 
the Act, details of which need to be mentioned in this Report.

DECLARATION AS PER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
During the year, the statutory auditors and secretarial auditors have not reported any instances of frauds committed by or 
against the Company by its Directors/ Officers/ Employees to the Audit Committee or Board under section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereof. Therefore, no details are required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of 
the Act.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Report referred to in Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 will 
be made available on the Company’s website at www.slvdigital.in.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT (BRSR)
The Listing Regulations mandate the inclusion of the BRSR as part of the Annual Report for top 1,000 listed entities based on 
market capitalization. In accordance with the Listing Regulations, our company does not fall under 1,000 listed entities based 
on market capitalization.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The Company’s goal has always been to create an open and safe workplace for every employee to feel empowered, irrespective 
of gender, sexual preferences and other factors, and contribute to the best of their abilities. In line to make the workplace a safe 
environment, the Company has setup a policy on prevention of sexual harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”). Further, the Company 
has complied with the provisions under the POSH Act relating to the framing of an anti-sexual harassment policy and the 
constitution of an Internal Committee.

The Company has not received any complaints of work place complaints, including complaints on sexual harassment during 
the year under review.

Sl. No Nature of Complaints Received Disposed-of Pending
1 Sexual Harassment 0 0 0
2 Workplace Discrimination 0 0 0
3 Child Labour 0 0 0
4 Forced Labour 0 0 0
5 Wages and Salary 0 0 0
6 Other HR Issues 0 0 0

MATERNITY BENEFIT PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY UNDER MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961”
The Company confirms that it has followed the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. all eligible women employees received the 
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required benefits, including paid leave, continued salary and service, and post-maternity support like nursing breaks and 
flexible work options.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR SECURITIES OR INVESTMENTS
The Company has not given loans / guarantees or made any investments during the year under review. 

MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION
The Managing Director of the Company have given annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the 
Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 for the FY 
2024-25.

They had also given quarterly certification on financial results while placing the quarterly results before the Board in terms of 
Regulation 33(2)(a) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

The annual certificate given by the Managing Director of the Company forms integral part of this report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25
During the year under review, the Board convened Five meetings. The dates of the Five meetings are May 30, 2024, July 17, 
2024, August 08, 2024, November 13, 2024 and January 30, 2025.

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the prescribed period and proper quorum was present for all the 
board meetings held during the year under review.

All the recommendations made by committees of the Board including the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AND ITS MEETINGS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25
The Composition of Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
are duly complied as per the SEBI LODR Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee convened Four meetings. The dates of the Four meetings are May 30, 
2024, August 08, 2024, November 13, 2024 and January 30, 2025.

During the year under review, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee convened One meeting on July 17, 2024.

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee convened One meeting on January 30, 2025.

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the prescribed period for the Audit Committee and proper quorum 
was present for all the Committee meetings held during the year under review.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETINGS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25
During the year under review, the Independent Directors meeting was convened on January 30, 2025 and all the two 
independent directors were present for the meeting.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed a policy which lays down 
a framework in relation to selection, appointment and remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management of the Company. The details of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Policy are stated in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

HUMAN RESOURCES
The management believes that competent and committed human resources are vitally important to attain success in the 
organisation. In line with this philosophy, utmost care is being exercised to attract quality resources and suitable training 
is imparted on various skillsets and behaviour. Various initiatives were undertaken to enhance the competitive spirit and 
encourage bonding teamwork among the employees, which resulted to uninterrupted operations of the Company and could 
achieve the targeted growth in the performance of the Company.

INSURANCE
All properties and insurable interests of the Company including buildings, plant and machinery and stocks have been fully 
insured.	

REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review

COMPLIANCE WITH SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015
In compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company has signed 
uniform listing agreement with M/s. BSE Limited and framed the required policies which are available on Company’s website 
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i.e., www.slvdigital.in.

•	 Code of conduct
•	 Policy on prohibition of insider trading
•	 Familiarisation programme for Non-executive directors
•	 Familiarisation programme for Independent directors
•	 Policy on related party transactions
•	 Whistle Blower Policy
•	 Remuneration Policy
•	 Risk Management Policy
•	 Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment
•	 Policy on Disclosure of Material Events
•	 Policy on Document retention
•	 Policy on material subsidiary
•	 BCL the amended code for disclosure of UPSI
•	 Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors
•	 Criteria of making payment to non-executive directors.
•	 Dividend Distribution Policy
•	 Policy to determine Materiality

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S COMPENSATION AND DISCLOSURES
None of the Independent / Non-Executive Directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company which 
in the Judgment of the Board may affect the independence of the Directors. The details of sitting fee paid were given in the 
Report on corporate governance.

INDUSTRY BASED DISCLOSURE
The Company is not a NBFC, Housing Companies etc., and hence Industry based disclosures is not required.

EVENT BASED DISCLOSURE
During the year under review, the Company has not taken up any of the following activities:

1.	 Issue of sweat equity share: The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and 
hence no information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

2.	 Issue of shares with differential rights: The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no 
information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014.

3.	 Issue of shares under employee’s stock option scheme: The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees 
Stock Option Scheme during the year under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of 
the Act is required to be given.

4.	 Disclosure on purchase by Company or giving of loans by it for purchase of its shares: The Company did not purchase 
or give any loans for purchase of its shares.

5.	 Preferential Allotment of Shares: The Company has not issued any equity shares on preferential basis to the promoters 
and non-promoters during the year under review.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTIONS
No employee was issued Stock Option, during the year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital of the Company at the 
time of grant.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors 
make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act: 

i.	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

ii.	 Such accounting policies as mentioned in the notes to the financial statements have been selected and applied 
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consistently and judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent made so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 2024-25 and of the statement of profit of the Company 
for that period;

iii.	 Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

iv.	 The annual accounts for the year 2024-25 have been prepared on a going concern basis.

v.	 Those proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating 
effectively.

vi.	 That, a system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and 
operating effectively.

APPOINTMENT OF DESIGNATED PERSON (MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION) RULES 2014 - RULE 9 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2013.
In accordance with Rule 9 of the Appointment of Designated Person (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, it is 
essential for the Company to designate a responsible individual for ensuring compliance with statutory obligations.

The Company has appointed Mrs. Asha Mitta, Managing Director of the Company as a Designated Person and the same shall 
be reported in the Annual Return of the Company.

DATA PRIVACY, DATA PROTECTION, AND CYBERSECURITY
The Company is committed to upholding the highest standards of data privacy and protection. In light of the increasing 
reliance on digital infrastructure, the Company has implemented comprehensive cybersecurity and data protection policies, 
aligned with industry best practices and the evolving regulatory framework, including provisions under the Information 
Technology Act, 2000, and applicable data protection regulations.

Key initiatives undertaken during the year include:
•	 Deployment of end-to-end encryption and multi-layered security protocols for data storage and transfer.
•	 Regular third-party cybersecurity audits and vulnerability assessments.
•	 Employee training programs on data protection and cybersecurity awareness.
•	 Strict access control mechanisms and implementation of role-based permissions.
•	 Data breach response protocols in accordance with the CERT-In guidelines.

The Company continues to invest in digital infrastructure to ensure robust protection of stakeholder information and business 
continuity.

APPRECIATION
The board wish to place on record its appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work, dedication and commitment. 
The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the Company to stream line all the pending compliances 
and thereby to have a fresh start for the Company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
Statements in this Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis as explained in the 
Corporate Governance Report, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may constitute 
‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ materially 
from those either expressed or implied in the statement depending on the circumstances.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The board take this opportunity to place on record their sincere thanks to the suppliers, customers, strategic partners, Banks 
and Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies, Central and State Government, Indian Railways, stakeholders and the 
shareholders for their support and co-operation extended to the Company from time to time. The board is pleased to record 
its appreciation of the sincere and dedicated services of the employees and workmen at all levels.

	 By order of the Board
	 For Skyline Ventures India Limited

	 Asha Mitta	 Prashanth Mitta
Date: September 01, 2025	 Managing Director	 Director
Place: Hyderabad	 DIN: 09195662	 DIN: 02459109
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ANNEXURE-I

PARTICULARS IN RESPECT OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

[(Information Under Section 134(3)(m) of The Companies Act, 2013, Read with Rules 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014]

FORM A

1.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

	 (i)	 Energy Conservation measures	 :	 Nil

	 (ii)	 Total energy consumption 	 : 	 Nil

2.	 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION	 :	 Nil

FORM B
(Disclosure of particulars with respect to Technology Absorption)

	 A.	 Research and Development (R & D)

		  1.	 Specific areas in which R & D is carried out by the company 	 :	 NA

		  2.	 Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D 	 : 	 NA

		  3.	 Future plan of action	 : 	 NA

		  4.	 Expenditure on R & D	 :	 NA

	 B.	 Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation	 : 	 NA

	 The Company is making all its efforts for improving productivity, product quality and reducing consumption of scarce 
raw materials and fuels.

3.	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

	 The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the 
year in terms of actual outflows:

	 (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2025
(12 Months)

March 31, 2024
(12 Months)

Earnings Nil Nil

Outgo Nil Nil
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ANNEXURE-II

FORM AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to 
in subsection (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso is 
given below:

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:
	 There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2025, which 

were not at arm’s length basis.

2.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:
	 The details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis are as follows:

Nature of contract & Name of the 
related party

Nature of 
relationship Duration of Contracts Salient 

Terms
Amount

(` in Lakhs)

Sales - - - -

Purchases - - - -

Managerial Remuneration
1. Mrs. Asha Mitta
2. Mr. G Krisha Mohan Reddy

Managing Director
Company Secretary

On going
As per the 

appointment 
letters

12.77
5.00

Loans 
1. Wilmer Technologies LLP Common Director

Ongoing and Repayable 
on demand

As agreed 
mutually 2.00

Reimbursement Expenses - - - -

Debit Balances - - - -

Credit Balances - - - -

Investments - - - -
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ANNEXURE-III

The details of remuneration during the year 2024-25 as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of 
the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2015 are as follows:

Information as per Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(Amount in `)

Name of Managerial 
Personnel Designation

Remuneration
FY 24-25

(12 Months)

Remuneration
FY 23-24

(12 Months)

% of Increase 
/ Decrease in 

Remuneration 

Ratio of 
Remuneration 

to MRE

Ratio of Remuneration to 
Revenues 
FY.24-25

Net Profit 
FY.24-25

Mrs. Asha Mitta Managing Director 12,77,000 -- -- -- -- --
Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Krishna Mohan Reddy G Company Secretary 5,00,000 -- -- -- -- --

Remuneration to Independent Directors (Sitting Fee) 

Sitting fee paid/ payable to Non-executive Directors for the period April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025:

Due to the situations of the Company, the independent directors agreed not to take sitting fees till the Company is revived 
and earns profits.

1.	 The Median Remuneration of the employees of the Company during the financial year was ` Nil/- PA.

2.	 In the financial year, there was negligible increase in the median remuneration employees compared to previous year.

3.	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 was 2 and 
2 respectively.

4.	 Variations in the market capitalization of the Company:

a.	 The Market Capitalization as on March 31, 2025 was ̀ 11,30,50,038/- (39,66,668 shares @ ̀ 28.50/- per shares being closing 
price on March 31, 2025 at BSE) and as on March 31, 2024 was `3,36,37,345/-.

b.	 Price earnings ratio of the Company as on March 31, 2025 was Nil since the Company’s earnings per share is negative 
of (0.76) per share.

5.	 The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors, if any, are considered as per 
the Nomination and Remuneration Policy during the period April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025.

6.	 The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive 
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year is Nil ratio of Managerial Remuneration and it is 
hereby confirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

7.	 During the year under review, none of the employees are receiving remuneration as set out in Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

	 By order of the Board
	 For Skyline Ventures India Limited

	 Asha Mitta	 Prashanth Mitta
Date: September 01, 2025	 Managing Director	 Director
Place: Hyderabad	 DIN: 09195662	 DIN: 02459109
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ANNEXURE-IV

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members of
M/s. Skyline Ventures Limited
CIN: L45200TG1988PLC009272
Regd. Off: Flat No. 102, HEMU, Vitalrao Nagar, 
Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad, Shaikpet, 
Telangana, India, 500081.

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit on the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by M/s. Skyline Ventures India Limited (hereinafter referred as the “Company”).  Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, the explanations and clarifications given to me and the representations made by the 
Management, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended 
on 31st March, 2025, (i.e.  from 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company to 
the applicable extent for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

A.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

B.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

C.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

D.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial   Borrowings;

E.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company:

(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and amendments 
from time to time;

(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 
and amendments from time to time (Not applicable to the Company during the financial year);

(d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the financial year);

(e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the financial year);

(f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference 
Shares) Regulations, 2013 (Not applicable to the Company during the financial year);

(g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
2018 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the financial year);

(i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the financial year);
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F.	  The Memorandum and Articles of Association.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following:
(i)	 Auditing and Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)

(ii)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
the Listing Agreements entered into with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test check basis, the Company has complied with all the applicable laws.

I further report that:
During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act/Listing Agreement. 
However, Chief Financial Officer of the Company was not appointed from July 18, 2024 to till date.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in 
advance as required, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 
meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. I further report that there are adequate 
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws, labour laws, filing of periodical returns, maintenance of 
financial records and books of accounts have not been reviewed by me since the same have been subject to review by Statutory 
Auditors, Internal Auditors and other professionals.

As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various statutory / regulatory authorities 
including actions for corrective measures, wherever found necessary.

I further report during the audit period, the Company had following specific events/actions having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs:

1.	 Mrs. Asha Mitta (DIN: 09195662) has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company by the Board in its meeting 
held on July 17, 2024 and subsequently approved by the members in their 36th Annual General Meeting held on 
September 30, 2024.

2.	 Mr. Prashanth Mitta (DIN: 02459109) designation has been changed from Whole-time Director to Non-executive 
Director by the Board in its meeting held on July 17, 2024 and subsequently approved by the members in their 36th 
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2024.

3.	 Mrs. Srivenkata Laxmi Padmaja Lakkimsetti (DIN: 07751864) resigned from the position of Director of the Company 
w.e.f., July 17, 2024.

4.	 Mr. Naga Visweswara Rao Lakkimsetti (DIN: 03623325) resigned from the position of Whole-time Director and Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f., July 17, 2024.

5.	 CS Krishna Mohan Reddy Gorantampalli (ACS - 41792) resigned from the position of the Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f., March 31, 2025.

6.	 CS Srilekha Donthineni (ACS - 74553) appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f., 
June 18, 2025.

	 For SARADA
	 Practising Company Secretary

	 P. Sarada
Date: September 01, 2025	 ACS No.  21717, C P No. 8735
Place: Hyderabad	 UDIN: A021717G001125567

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-I and forms part of this report
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ANNEXURE - I
To
The Members of
M/s. Skyline Ventures India Limited
CIN: L45200TG1988PLC009272
Regd. Off: Flat No. 102, HEMU, Vitalrao Nagar, 
Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad, Shaikpet, 
Telangana, India, 500081.

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility Statement
i.	 Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on audit.

Auditor’s Responsibility Statement
ii.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain responsible assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices that I follow provide a responsible basis for 
my opinion.

iii.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

iv.	 Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer
v.	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. My examination was limited to verification of procedures on test basis.

vi.	 The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

vii.	 Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial, and operating controls, there is an unavoidable 
risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly 
planned and performed in accordance with audit practices.

	 For SARADA
	 Practising Company Secretary

	 P. Sarada
Date: September 01, 2025	 ACS No.  21717, C P No. 8735
Place: Hyderabad
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ANNEXURE-V

CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Members of
M/s. Skyline Ventures India Limited
CIN: L45200TG1988PLC009272
Regd. Off: Flat No. 102, HEMU, Vitalrao Nagar, 
Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad, Shaikpet, 
Telangana, India, 500081.

I have examined and verified the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. 
Skyline Ventures India Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) having its registered office at Flat No. 102, HEMU, 
Vitalrao Nagar, Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad, Shaikpet, Telangana, India, 500081 and the information provided by the 
Company and its Directors and also based on the information available at the websites of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (i.e., 
www.mca.gov.in) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (i.e. www.sebi.gov.in), I hereby certify that as on the date of 
this certificate, none of the below mentioned Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as Directors of Company by Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Sl.No. Name of the Director DIN Designation

1 Mr. Ajay Kumar Giri 10254489 Independent Director

2 Mr. Nikshit Hemendra Shah 07910462 Independent Director

3 Mr. Prashanth Mitta 02459109 Non-executive Director

4 Mrs. Asha Mitta 09195662 Managing Director

	 For SARADA
	 Practising Company Secretary

	 P. Sarada
Date: September 01, 2025	 ACS No.  21717, C P No. 8735
Place: Hyderabad	 UDIN: A021717G001125644
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ANNEXURE-VI

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Industry Structure and Development: 
The global business landscape continues to be fundamentally reshaped by digital transformation, a trend that aligns directly 
with Skyline Ventures India Limited’s core object of software development and IT enabled services. The industry is marked 
by the convergence of Artificial Intelligence (AI), Cloud Computing, Internet of Things, and Cybersecurity. Businesses are not 
merely adopting technology but are being reinvented by it, thereby generating robust demand for end-to-end digital solution 
providers.

The Indian IT industry has exhibited remarkable resilience and growth, cementing its position as a global hub for digital 
capabilities. The present phase reflects a shift from traditional outsourcing to strategic partnerships where clients expect 
providers to deliver innovation, value-driven outcomes, and disruptive digital business models. Generative AI and machine 
learning have transitioned from experimental use cases to being integral in operations, enhancing efficiencies and creating 
revenue streams across sectors such as BFSI, healthcare, and retail. Simultaneously, enterprises are accelerating their 
migration to cloud-native platforms—public, private, and hybrid—in order to achieve scalability, agility, and cost efficiency, 
which has opened significant opportunities in cloud consulting, migration, and managed services. Cybersecurity has gained 
heightened importance in light of increasingly sophisticated threats, elevating it from a compliance requirement to a critical 
business imperative. Alongside, organizations are embracing hyper-automation, deploying AI, robotic process automation, 
and advanced software to automate complex, end-to-end business processes. 

Opportunities and Strengths: 
The Fourth Industrial Revolution is well underway, and Skyline Ventures India Limited is strategically positioned to capitalize 
on the opportunities arising from this transformation. The Company has the agility to operate in high-growth niche areas, 
focusing its resources on software development, IT-enabled services, and digital solutions. This focus strengthens its core 
competency and enhances the overall value proposition.

India’s pioneering digital public infrastructure, such as UPI, Aadhaar, and ONDC, offers immense potential for creating 
innovative applications and solutions for both domestic and global markets. The global focus on Environmental, Social, and 
Governance (ESG) norms has created new avenues in developing software solutions for sustainability reporting, carbon 
footprint tracking, and green supply chain management. Additionally, the underserved small and medium enterprise sector 
in India presents a promising market for affordable and scalable SaaS products, an area where the Company is well-positioned 
to expand. The continued growth of Global Capability Centers (GCCs) in India also provides opportunities for the Company 
to partner in delivering specialized software development and support services. 

Risks and Concerns: 
Despite the positive outlook, the Company remains cognizant of the risks that characterize the IT industry. The market is 
highly competitive, with large Indian firms, global majors, and agile startups exerting pressure that may lead to margin 
erosion. Skyline Ventures seeks to mitigate this through niche expertise, superior client servicing, and innovative solutioning. 
Global economic uncertainties, particularly in key markets such as the US and Europe, could result in reduced technology 
spending; to counter this, the Company is diversifying its client base across geographies and sectors.

Another concern arises from the relentless pace of technological advancements, which could render services obsolete if new 
capabilities are not adopted. Skyline Ventures is addressing this by continuous investment in research, development, and 
upskilling of employees in cutting-edge areas such as AI and blockchain. Cybersecurity remains a significant risk, as technology 
companies are prime targets for attacks. To mitigate this, the Company has implemented a robust, multi-layered cybersecurity 
framework and conducts periodic audits. Talent attrition is another major challenge, and to address this, Skyline Ventures is 
fostering a stimulating work environment, offering competitive compensation, and ensuring clear career progression paths to 
retain critical talent. 

Internal Control: 
The Company has established a sound internal control framework commensurate with its size and nature of operations. These 
controls are designed to ensure the reliability of financial reporting, safeguard assets, promote operational efficiency, and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The internal audit function operates independently and evaluates the 
effectiveness of internal controls across business processes, reporting its findings directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee of the Board provides oversight and ensures that corrective actions are promptly taken, thereby strengthening the 
overall governance framework.

Performance Review 
Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance:
1.	 Total Income: During the year under review Skyline has achieved a gross total income of ` Nil.
2.	 Share Capital: The paid-up share capital as on 31st March, 2025 is ` 3,96,66,680/- divided into 39,66,668 fully paid-up 

equity shares of Rs.10/- each.
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3.	 Net Profit: The Company’s operating profit during the year under review has resulted in a net Loss of ` (38.07) Lakhs. 

4.	 Earnings Per Share (EPS): The Earning per Share for the Financial Year 2024-25 is ̀  (0.96)/- per share (Face Value: Rs.10/- 
each).

Your directors are putting continuously efforts to increase the performance of Company and are hopeful that the performance 
in coming year will improve in faster way.

Human Resource: 
Human capital continues to be the cornerstone of the Company’s growth strategy. During FY 2024–25, the HR strategy was 
focused on building a high-performance team aligned with the altered business objectives. A core team of skilled professionals 
has been recruited across software development, project management, and digital solutions. The HR function has collaborated 
with the Board and senior management to instill a culture of performance, innovation, and recognition.

Employees are encouraged to take ownership, contribute to innovation, and pursue professional growth. The emphasis on 
competitive compensation, clear career development, and employee engagement has been critical in creating a motivated 
workforce. The Company believes that this strong human resource foundation will provide it with a sustainable competitive 
advantage in the evolving technology sector.

	 By order of the Board
	 For Skyline Ventures India Limited

	 Asha Mitta	 Prashanth Mitta
Date: September 01, 2025	 Managing Director	 Director
Place: Hyderabad	 DIN: 09195662	 DIN: 02459109
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MD & CFO CERTIFICATION TO THE BOARD
Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015

We hereby certify that:

a)	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 and 
that these statements;

i.	 Do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading; and

ii.	 Together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b)	 There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the 
Company’s code of Business conduct and Ethics.

c)	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have 
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if 
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to address these deficiencies.

d)	 We have disclosed, wherever applicable to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

i.	 That there were no deficiencies in the design or operations of Internal Controls that could adversely affect the 
Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data including any corrective actions;

ii.	 That there are no material weaknesses in the internal controls over financial reporting;

iii.	 That there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

iv.	 All significant changes in the accounting policies during the year, if any, and that the same have been disclosed 
in the notes of the financial statements; and

v.	 That there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and involvement therein 
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting.

	 For Skyline Ventures India Limited

	 Asha Mitta
Date: September 01, 2025	 Managing Director
Place: Hyderabad	 DIN: 09195662

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a code of conduct for all the Board members and Senior Management Personnel 
of the Company. The Code of Conduct has also been posted on the website of the Company. It is further confirmed that all 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 as envisaged in the chapter IV of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 For Skyline Ventures India Limited

	 Asha Mitta
Date: September 01, 2025	 Managing Director
Place: Hyderabad	 DIN: 09195662
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
M/s. Skyline Ventures India Limited
CIN: L45200TG1988PLC009272
Regd. Off: Flat No. 102, HEMU, Vitalrao Nagar, 
Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad, Shaikpet, 
Telangana, India, 500081.

I, P Sarada, Practising Company Secretary have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by M/s. Skyline 
Ventures India Limited (“the Company”), for the year ended March 31, 2025, as per the relevant provisions of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”)

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited 
to review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of the Corporate Governance as stipulated. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of 
the Company.

I have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in 
India, to the extent relevant, and as per the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance Issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations of the relevant records and the explanations 
given to me by the Directors and the Management, I certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations except the deviations mentioned in my Secretarial Audit 
Report dated September 01, 2025 for the FY 2024-25.  

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

	 For SARADA
	 Practising Company Secretary

	 P. Sarada
Date: September 01, 2025	 ACS No.  21717, C P No. 8735
Place: Hyderabad	 UDIN: A021717G001125699 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SKY LINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SKY LINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year ended on that date, and a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. . There are no Key 
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
•	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures 
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report there on.

•	 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion there on.

•	 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other  information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent  with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

•	 If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statement
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with  respect to the preparation 
of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial  position, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income, and cash flows of the Company in  accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability  to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going  concern and using  the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the 



37th Annual Report 2024 - 2025

SKYLINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED 

34

provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the Accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of significance in 
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosures about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Companies Act 2013, we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
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b)	 In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears 
from our examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financials comply with the Accounting Standards specified under of Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e)	 On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025, and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2025, from being appointed as 
a director in terms of sub section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

f)	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; and

g)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, 
during the financial year managerial remuneration is paid or provided. 

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

i.	 There are no pending litigations for or against the Company which would impact its financial position.

ii.	 The Company does not have any derivatives contracts. Further there are no long term contracts for which 
provisions for any material foreseeable losses is required to be made.

iii.	 There are no amounts pending that are required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

	 iv.	 a)	 The management has represented, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  b)	 The management has represented, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

		  c)	 Based on the audit procedures performed by us, which has considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of rule 11(e) as provided under (a) and (b), contain any material mis-statement.

	 v.	 The company hasn’t declared any Dividend for the current year.

	 vi.	 Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining 
its books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31st, 2025, which have a feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature 
being tampered with.

		  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2024, reporting 
under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31st, 2025.

2.	  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, issued by the department of company affairs, in terms 
of section 143 (11) of the companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

	 For K S RAO & ASSOCIATES
	 Chartered Accountants
	 FRN No. 012055S

	 SRINIVAS RAO K
	 Proprietor
Date: 26 May 2025	 M.No: 213480
Place: Hyderabad.	 UDIN: 25213480BMIUZK1044
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of SKYLINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SKY LINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under Section143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of internal financial Controls over Financial reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statement for external purpose in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion:
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

	 For K S RAO & ASSOCIATES
	 Chartered Accountants
	 FRN No. 012055S

	 SRINIVAS RAO K
	 Proprietor
Date: 26 May 2025	 M.No: 213480
Place: Hyderabad.	 UDIN: 25213480BMIUZK1044
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of SKY LINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED of even date)
i.	 a.	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of fixed assets.

	 (b)	 The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner which, in 
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to 
the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the 
examination of the conveyance deeds / registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, 
comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the 
Company as at the balance sheet date.

	 (d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 
during the year.

	 (e)	 According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company as at 31st March 2025 for 
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 
thereunder.

ii.	 The Company does not hold any physical inventory. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

iii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other 
parties during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the  Company  has complied 
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing 
guarantees and securities, as applicable.

iv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the 
Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans or provided guarantee or security 
and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable 
to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. Hence, 
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi.	 As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the company.

vii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a)	 The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.	

(b)	 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income 
Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March 
2025 for a period of more than six  months from the date they became payable.

viii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the 
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

ix.	 Based on our Audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institutions, banks or debenture holders.

x.	 (a)	 The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly convertible debentures during the year) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable.
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xi.	 (a)	 Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the course of the audit.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of 
the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

	 (c)	 As per representation to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year.

xii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting 
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with 
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and 
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

xiv.	 a)	 In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have an 
Internal Audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of the Act.

	 b)	 In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have an 
internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of the Act and hence 
reporting under clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the 
Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 (a)	 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and 
hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c)  of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	 The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016 as amended) and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

 xvii.	 The Company has incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

xix.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, 
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting 
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due.

xx.	 There is no applicability of CSR to the company.

	 For K S RAO & ASSOCIATES
	 Chartered Accountants
	 FRN No. 012055S

	 SRINIVAS RAO K
	 Proprietor
Date: 26 May 2025	 M.No: 213480
Place: Hyderabad.	 UDIN: 25213480BMIUZK1044
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SKYLINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED
CIN : L45200TG1988PLC009272

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025
All amounts are in INR Lakh except share data or unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note 
No.

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024 

I Assets
A Non-Current Assets

(a)	 Property,Plant and Equipment 2 53.02 53.32
(b)	 Intangible assets 2 5.00 5.00
(c)	 Financial Assets
	 (i)	 Other Financial Assets 3 234.68 234.68
(d)	 Deferred tax asset (net) 4  1.06 1.22
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 293.76 294.22

B Current Assets
(a)	 Financial Assets
	 i)	 Trade Receivables 6 257.65 257.65
	 ii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 7 0.35 0.39
Total Current Assets (B) 258.00 258.04
Total Assets (A+B) 551.76 552.25

II Equity and Liabilities
A Equity 

a)	 Share Capital 396.67 396.67
b)	 Other Equity  (35.46) 2.60
Total Equity (A) 361.21 399.27
Liabilities

B Non - current liabilities:
(a)	  Financial Liabilities
	 i)	 Borrowings 11 115.94 109.09
Total Non-Current Liabilities (B) 115.94 109.09

C Current liabilities
(a)	 Financial Liabilities
	 i)	 Trade payables 12
(a)	 Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(b)	 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 

enterprises 13.81 6.40

	 ii)	 Other financial liabilities 13 35.87 12.56
(b)	 Provisions 14 21.80 21.80
(c)	 Other Current Liabilities 8 3.13 3.13
Total Current liabilities (C) 74.61 43.89
Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B+C) 551.76 552.25

 This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date. 

For K S RAO & ASSOCIATES	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 SKYLINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED
FRN No. 012055S

SRINIVAS RAO K	 ASHA MITTA	 PRASHANTH MITTA
Partner	 Director	 Director
M.No. 213480	 DIN: 09195662	 DIN: 02459109
UDIN : 25213480BMIVAG7652.

Date: 13 August, 2025
Place: Hyderabad
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SKYLINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED
CIN : L45200TG1988PLC009272

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
All amounts are in INR Lakh except share data or unless otherwise stated 

Particulars Note
No.

For the year 
ended

31 march 2025

 For the year 
ended

31 March 2024

I. Revenue from operations 15  -  - 

II. Other income 20  -  - 

III. Total Income (I + II)  -  - 

IV. Expenses:

Employee Benefit expense 19 17.77 9.00

Finance costs 21

Depreciation and amortization expense 0.30 1.36

Other expenses 20 19.84 51.61

Total expenses (IV) 37.91 61.97

V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  (37.91)  (61.97)

VI. Exceptional items

VII. Profit before tax (V-VI)  (61.97)  (2.36)

VIII. (1)	 Current tax - -

(2)	 Deferred tax  0.16  (0.03)

IX. Profit (Loss) for the period  (VII-VIII)  (38.07)  (61.94)

X. Other Comprehensive Income

(i)	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

	 Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 0.00 0.00

	 Income tax effect relating to above item 0.00 0.00

(ii)	 Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss 

	 Income tax effect relating to above item 0.00 0.00

	 Total Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.00 0.00

XI. Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (IX+X)  (38.07)  (61.93)

XII. Earnings per equity share:(Face Value of Rs.10/-)

(1)	 Basic  (0.96)  (1.56)

(2)	 Diluted  (0.96)  (1.56)

Notes forming part of the financial statements 

For K S RAO & ASSOCIATES	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 SKYLINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED
FRN No. 012055S

SRINIVAS RAO K	 ASHA MITTA	 PRASHANTH MITTA
Partner	 Director	 Director
M.No. 213480	 DIN: 09195662	 DIN: 02459109
UDIN : 25213480BMIVAG7652.

Date: 13 August, 2025
Place: Hyderabad
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SKYLINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED
CIN : L45200TG1988PLC009272

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
All amounts are in INR Lakh except share data or unless otherwise stated

Particulars
For the year 

ended
31 March 2024

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2023

A.	 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

	 Net profit before tax  (37.91)  (61.97)

	 Adjusted for :

	 Interest expense 0.00 0.00

	 Depreciation 0.30 1.36

	 Operating profits before working capital changes  (37.61)  (60.61)

	 Changes in current assets and liabilities

	 Trade Payables 7.41

	 Other Financial Liabilities 23.31 1.00

	 Cash generated from operations  (6.89)  (59.61)

	 Income tax paid 0.00 0.00

	 Net cash generated from operating activities  (6.89)  (59.61)

B.	 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

	 Proceeds from borrowings 6.85 58.36

	 Interest paid 0.00 0.00

	 Net cash generated in financing activities 6.85  58.36 

	 Net increase / (decrease)  in cash and cash equivalents  (0.04)  (1.26)

	 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.39 1.64

	 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  0.35  0.38 

For K S RAO & ASSOCIATES	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants	 SKYLINE VENTURES INDIA LIMITED
FRN No. 012055S

SRINIVAS RAO K	 ASHA MITTA	 PRASHANTH MITTA
Partner	 Director	 Director
M.No. 213480	 DIN: 09195662	 DIN: 02459109
UDIN : 25213480BMIVAG7652.

Date: 13 August, 2025
Place: Hyderabad
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1.	 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	 Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
	 (All amounts are in INR Lakhs except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.1	 Company Information 
	 Skyline Ventures India Limited (“the Company”) is registered in India under the Companies Act,1956 as a Public 

Limited Company on 17/11/1988 and as on date it is Public Limited Company, having its registered office at Flat No. 
102, HEMU, Vitalrao Nagar, Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad, Shaikpet, Telangana, India, 500081. The shares of 
the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange of India Ltd. The Principal accounting policies applied in the 
preparation of the financial statements are set out below.

1.2	 Basis of preparation and presentation

a)	 Statement of Compliance
	 The financial statements of Skyline Ventures India Limited (Formerly Known as Paramatma Enterprises 

Limited) have been prepared and presented in accordance with and in compliance in all material aspects, with 
the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) 
read along with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and presentation requirements of 
Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 and as amended from time to time together with the 
comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025.

	 These financial statements have been prepared by the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind 
AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting date, 31 March 2025. These financial statements for the 
year ended 31 March 2025 were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26 May 2025.

b)	 Basis of measurement
	 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for 

the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

i)	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial 
instruments);

ii)	 Employee defined benefit assets/(liability) are recognized as the net total of the fair value of plan assets, 
plus actuarial losses, less actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligation, and

iii)	 Long-term borrowings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

c)	 Functional and presentation currency
	 These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional currency of the Company. 

All the financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest Lakhs.

d)	 Significant accounting judgements, estimates, and assumption
	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates.

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, the 
areas involving critical estimates or Judgment are:

	 Property, plant and equipment
	 The depreciation of property, plant and equipment is derived on determining an estimate of an asset’s expected 

useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The residual values of Company’s assets are 
determined by management at the time of acquisition of asset and are reviewed periodically, including at each 
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of 
future events, which may impact their life.

	 Impairment of financial and non-financial assets 
	 Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of impairment loss on the financial 

and nonfinancial assets. The calculations of impairment loss are sensitive to underlying assumptions.

	 Tax provisions and contingencies 
	 Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of tax provisions and contingencies.
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 	 Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and MAT credit entitlements to the extent it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which these losses and credit entitlements can be utilized. Significant 
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, 
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

	 Defined benefit plans 
	 The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of the obligation are determined using actuarial 

valuation. An actuarial valuation involves various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due 
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly 
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

	 The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for 
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining 
maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

	 The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only 
at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on 
expected future inflation rates.

	 Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
	 When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured 

based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using internal valuation techniques. 
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such 
as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported 
fair value of financial instruments.

e)	 Current and noncurrent classification
	 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

	  All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1, presentation of 
financial statements.

	 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i)	 It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating 
cycle;

ii)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii)	 It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

iv)	 It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting date.

	 All other assets are classified as non-current.

	 A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i)	 It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

ii)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii)	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

iv)	 The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result 
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

	 The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

	 Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of noncurrent assets/ liabilities respectively. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are always disclosed as non- current.

	 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

f)	 Fair value measurement
	 The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair 
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value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

•	 in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

•	 in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The 
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company 

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements 
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

•	 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•	 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value     
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

•	 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Ind AS financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.

	 The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, 
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring 
measurement, such as assets held for sale in discontinued operations.

	 External valuers are involved, wherever considered necessary. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the 
Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of 
the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

	 This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant 
notes.

2.	 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1	 Foreign currency transactions and balances
	 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency 

spot rates at the date, the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

	 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 
items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the 
exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

	 The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose 
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or profit or loss are also recognised 
in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

2.2	 Property plant and equipment
	 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment are recognized as an asset if, and only if it is probable 
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that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.

	 Items of property, plant and equipment (including capital-work-in progress) are stated at cost of acquisition or 
construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

	 Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset i.e., freight, non-refundable 
duties and taxes applicable, and other expenses related to acquisition and installation.

	 The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to bringing 
the asset to a working condition for its intended use.

	 When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates 
them separately based on their specific useful lives.

	 Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

	 Subsequent expenditure
	 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 

expenditure will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

	 Depreciation
	 Depreciation on items of PPE is provided on straight line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives as 

mentioned in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a 
pro-rata basis i.e. from / up to the date on which asset is ready for use / disposed-off.

	 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

	 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part will be derecognized. The costs 
of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

	 Items of stores and spares that meet the definition of Property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost, 
otherwise, such items are classified as inventories.

	 Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting date 
is disclosed as capital advances under other assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready to use 
before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

2.3	 Financial instruments
	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 

equity instrument of another entity.

a.	 Financial assets
	 Initial recognition and measurement
	 All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded 

at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established 
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, 
i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset..

	 Subsequent measurement
	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

•	 Debt instruments at amortized cost,

•	 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI),

•	 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),

•	 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

	 Debt instruments at amortized cost 
	 A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost, if both of the following conditions are met: (i) 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows; and (ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
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	 After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization 
is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other 
receivables.

	 Debt instrument at FVTOCI 
	 A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:

(i)	 The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling the financial assets; and

(ii)	 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

	 Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. However, the Company recognizes 
interest income, impairment losses and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. 
On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from 
the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is 
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

	 Debt instrument at FVTPL 
	 FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria 

for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Debt instruments included 
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss.

	 Equity Instruments
	 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 

are held for trading are classified as FVTPL. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument 
as FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the 
OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss. Equity instruments 
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	 Derecognition
	 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a.	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b.	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

	 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass- through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset 
to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

	 Impairment of Financial Assets
	 The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets 

is impaired.

	 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company uses “Expected Credit Loss” (ECL) model, for evaluating 
impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 
(FVTPL).

	 Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

•	 The 12 months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events 
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on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date);

•	 Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default 
events over the life of the financial instrument)

	 The company follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade 
receivables and under the simplified approach, the company does not track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date right from 
its initial recognition. The company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance 
on trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the 
expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, 
the historical observed default rates are updated

	 For other assets, the company uses 12-month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no 
significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

b.	 Financial liabilities

	 Initial recognition and measurement
	 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value i.e., loans and 

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

	 The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including 
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.

	 Subsequent measurement
	 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification.

	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Financial 
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that 
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated 
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading, unless they are designated as effective 
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss.

	 Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated 
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities 
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in 
OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss.

	 However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair 
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Loans and borrowings
	 After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities 
are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

	 De-recognition
	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
	 The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 

initial recognition, no re-classification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and 
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a re-classification is made only if 
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there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. A change in the business model occurs 
when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the re-classification prospectively from the re-
classification date, which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change 
in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including 
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

	 Offsetting of financial instruments
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.4	 Cash & Cash Equivalents
	 Cash and bank balances comprise of cash balance in hand, in current accounts with banks, and other short-term 

deposits. For this purpose, “short-term” means investments having maturity of three months or less from the 
date of investment, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of our cash management are included as a component of cash 
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. 

2.5	 Impairment of non-financial assets
	 The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than biological assets, investment property, 

inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment.

	 If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
	 For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, an impairment 

test is performed each year at March 31.
	 The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use 

and its fair value less costs to sell.
	 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset or the cash-generating unit.

	 For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflow of other assets or 
groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

	 The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are 
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets 
and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is 
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond 
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the 
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. 
In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or 
country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

	 An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss if the estimated recoverable amount of an 
asset or its cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses recognized in respect of 
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units 
and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis.

	 Reversal of Impairment of Assets
	 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses 

recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or 
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized. 

2.6	 Employee benefits
	 Short term employee benefits
	 Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the 

amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as 
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
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	 Defined contribution plans 
	 The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss as 

and when the services are received from the employees.

	 Defined benefit plans 
	 The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the 

projected unit credit method consistent with the advice of qualified actuaries. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high- 
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have 
terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related defined benefit obligation. In countries where there 
is no deep market in such bonds, the market interest rates on government bonds are used. The current service 
cost of the defined benefit plan, recognized in the statement of profit and loss in employee benefit expense, 
reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit 
changes, curtailments and settlements. Past service costs are recognized immediately in the statement of profit 
and loss.

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation 
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit 
and loss. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
for defined benefit obligation and plan assets are recognized in OCI in the period in which they arise. When 
the benefits under a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to 
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The 
Company recognizes gains or losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan obligation when the settlement 
occurs.

	 Termination benefits
	 Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss when the Company 

is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either 
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of 
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are 
recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss if the Company has made an offer encouraging 
voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be 
estimated reliably.

	 Other long-term employee benefits
	 The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit 

that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous periods. That benefit is 
discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
in the period in which they arise.

	 Compensated absences 
	 The Company’s current policies permit certain categories of its employees to accumulate and carry forward 

a portion of their unutilised compensated absences and utilise them in future periods or receive cash in lieu 
thereof in accordance with the terms of such policies. The Company measures the expected cost of accumulating 
compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company incurs as a result of the unused entitlement 
that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such measurement is based on actuarial valuation as at the reporting 
date carried out by a qualified actuary.

2.7	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Expected future operating losses 
are not provided for.

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability.

	 Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance 
cost.

	 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
	 A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 

may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present 
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obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is 
made.

	 Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed 
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related 
income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

	 Onerous contracts 
	 A provision for onerous contracts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the expected benefits to 

be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under 
the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating 
the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the 
Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

	 Reimbursement rights 
	 Expected reimbursements for expenditures required to settle a provision are recognised in the statement of profit 

and loss only when receipt of such reimbursements is virtually certain. Such reimbursements are recognised as 
a separate asset in the balance sheet, with a corresponding credit to the specific expense for which the provision 
has been made.

2.8	 Interest Income 
	 Interest Income mainly comprises of interest on Margin money deposit with banks relating to bank guarantee 

and term deposits.
	 Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method (EIR).
	 Interest is recognized using the time-proportion method, based on rates implicit in the transactions.

2.9	 Tax Expenses
	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that 

it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in Other comprehensive income.

	 The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax 
treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under Ind AS 37 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

	 Current tax 
	 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 

to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the 
statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the statement of profit and loss (either in OCI or in equity in 
correlation to the underlying transaction). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions, where appropriate.

	 Deferred tax
	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deductible temporary 
differences.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be utilized.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 
to be utilised.

	 Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it 
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the 
statement of profit and loss (either in OCI or in equity in correlation to the underlying transaction).
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	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.

	 Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the 
year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the 
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified year, i.e., the year for which MAT credit is allowed 
to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way 
of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The Company reviews the 
“MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

	 Goods and Service Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses.

	 When the tax incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, the tax 
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. 
Otherwise, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of taxes paid. The net amount of tax recoverable 
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

2.10	 Earnings Per Share

	 Basic earnings per share
	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year.

	 The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus 
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

	 Diluted earnings per share
	 Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit (considered in determination of basic earnings 

per share) after considering the effect of interest and other financing costs or income (net of attributable taxes) 
associated with dilutive potential equity shares by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per share adjusted for the weighted average number of equity shares that would have 
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.11	 Segment reporting
	 The Company is engaged in the in “ Construction “ and the same constitutes a single reportable business 

segment as per Ind AS 108.And hence segment reporting specified as per IND AS 108 is not applicable.

2.12	 Share capital
	 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. 

Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 12.

2.13	 Determination of fair values
	 The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for certain financial 

and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure 
purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made 
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability. A fair value measurement 
of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use.

	 Property, plant and equipment
	 Property, plant and equipment, if acquired in a business combination or through an exchange of non-monetary 

assets, is measured at fair value on the acquisition date. For this purpose, fair value is based on appraised 
market values and replacement cost.

	 Investments in equity and debt securities and units of mutual funds
	 The fair value of marketable equity and debt securities is determined by reference to their quoted market price 

at the reporting date. For debt securities where quoted market prices are not available, fair value is determined 
using pricing techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis. In respect of investments in mutual funds, 
the fair values represent net asset value as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published 
statements. Net asset values represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund 
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and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors. Accordingly, such net asset values 
are analogous to fair market value with respect to these investments, as transactions of these mutual funds are 
carried out at such prices between investors and the issuers of these units of mutual funds. 

2.14	 New standards adopted by the company
	 Ind AS 1 – Presentation of financial information

	 The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant 
accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can 
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The 
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statement.

	 Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes
	 The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and 

decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 
15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial 
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company does not expect this 
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

	 Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
	 The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The 

definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. 
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject 
to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in 
Restated financial information to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The company 
does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

2.15	 New Accounting pronouncements
	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 
2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the 
Company. 
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NOTE FORMING PART FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025 
 As at

31 March 2024 
INR INR

Note 3
Other Financial Assets
	 Measured at Cost
	 Land Advance 193.91 193.91
	 Others 40.77 40.77
	 Total 234.68 234.68
Note 4
Income Taxes Asset (Net)
	 MAT Credit Entilement
	 Income Tax Provision
	 Defferred Tax Asset (1.06) (1.22)
	 Total (1.06) (1.22)
Note 5
Inventories
	 Closing Stock
	 Raw Material
	 Work in Progress
	 Finished Goods
	 Total 0 0
Note 6
Trade Receivables
	 Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date 

they are due for payment
	 Secured, considered good

 257.65  257.65 
	 Unsecured, considered doubtful
	 Less: Provision for doubtful debts

 257.65  257.65 
	 Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the 

date they are due for payment
	 Secured, considered good
	 Unsecured, considered good
	 Unsecured, considered doubtful
	 Less: Provision for doubtful debts

0 0
	 Total  257.65  257.65 
Note 7
Cash and cash equivalents
	 Cash in Hand 0 0
	 Cash at Bank:
		  In Current Accounts  0.35 0.39
	 Total  0.35 0.39
Note 8
Other Current Liabilities
	 Duties & Taxes  3.13  3.13 
	 Total  3.13  3.13 
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NOTE FORMING PART FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025 
 As at

31 March 2024 
INR INR

Note 11
Borrowings
Borrowings
Unsecured Loans
-	 from related parties
-	 from others  115.94  109.09 
	 Total  115.94  109.09 
Note 12
Trade Payables
Sundry Creditors
-	 Due to Micro,Small and Mediam enterprises
-	 Due to Others 13.81  6.40 
	 Total 13.81  6.40 
Note 13
	 Audit Fee Payable  5.05  3.05 
	 Employee Expenses Payable  8.40  8.40 
	 Directors Remuneration Payable  12.77 -
	 Directors Sitting Fees Payable  0.64 -
	 Rent Payable  6.00 -
	 Expenses payable  0.70  0.70 
	 Interest Payable  0.41  0.41 
	 Other Expenses Payable  1.89 -
	 Total  35.87  12.56 
Note 14
	 Short term Provisions
	 Provision for Taxes  21.80  21.80 
	 Total  21.80  21.80 

Note 15
Revenue from operations
Income from Operations
a)	 Sale of Products  -  - 
b)	 Sale of Services  -  - 
c)	 Other Operating Revenues  -  - 
	 Total  -  - 
Note 16
Other Incomes
	 Total
Note 17
	 Purchase Raw Material  -  - 
	 Purchase of Finished Goods  -  - 
	 Total  -  - 
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NOTE FORMING PART FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025 
 As at

31 March 2024
INR INR

Note 18
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory
Opening Stock:
	 Raw Material  -  - 
	 Work in Progress  -  - 
	 Finished Goods  -  - 

 -  - 
Closing Stock:
	 Raw Material  -  - 
	 Work in Progress  -  - 
	 Finished Goods  -  - 

 -  - 
	 Total  -  - 
Note 19
Employee Benefit Expenses
	 Salaries, Wages & Bonus  5.00 9.00
	 Incentives  -    - 
	 Staff welfare expenses  -   -
	 Directors Remuneration  12.77  - 
	 Total 17.77 9.00
Note 20
	 Manufacturing Expenses
	 Total
Note 21
Finance Charges
	 Interest on Loan  - -
	 Total  - -
Note 22
Other Expenses
	 Legal and Professional Fee - -
	 Utilities - -
	 Audit Fee  1.00  1.00 
	 Bank Charges - -
	 Loan Processing Charges - -
	 Office Maintenance - -
	 Commission - -
	 Repairs & Mainatenance - -
	 Proffesional charges  5.73  -   
	 Office Rent  6.00  -   
	 Stock Transfer Expences - -
	 Petrol and conveyance - -
	 Telephone & Internet Charges - -
	 Printing and Stationery - -
	 Other Expenses  7.10  50.61 
	 Insurance - -
	 Rates & Taxes - -
	 Business Promotions - -
	 Total  19.83  51.61 
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NOTE FORMING PART FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S.No. Ratio FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25

1 Current ratio  5.88  3.46 

2 Debt equity ratio  0.27  0.32 

3 Debt service coverage ratio  (60.61)  (37.61)

4 ROE Ratio  (0.16)  (0.10)

5 ROCE  (0.122)  (0.08)

NOTE FORMING PART FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars
For the Year 

ended 
31 March 2024

For the Year 
ended 

31 March 2025

Accounting profit before income tax  (61.97)  (37.91)

Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17%

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2022: 25.17%)  (15.60)  (9.54)

	 Tax effect of items non-deductible for tax purposes  1.22 -

	 Tax effect of relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  (2.13) -

	 On account of others  0.84 -

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  0.02 -

Effective tax rates -0.68% -



NOTES




